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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT

__ The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable
company, The Waldegrave Trust (the "Trust”) for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024, The annual report
serves the purposes of both a Trustees’ report, a Directors' report and Strategic report under company law.

The principal activity of the Trust during the year was to operate a single secondary school, Waldegrave School,
located in Twickenham.

Waldegrave Schocl was originally a local authority cperated secondary school in Richmond upon Thames, foundad
in 1980. It converted to academy status on 1 August 2012 and the charitable company was incorporated on 4 July
2012, Waldegrave School operates two priority areas, A and B, of a rectangular catchment area, across a
designated local area.

Waldegrave School is a girls only school from 11-16 and a mixed provision for sixth form 17-18. It had pupil
numbers of 1,470 in the school census in October 2024, As at census date there were 383 students in sixth form of
which 288 were girls and 95 boys.

The Trust is governad by the rules and regutaticns set down in its updated Memorandum and Articles of Association
dated B April 2022.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Constitution

The Trust is an exempt charity and a company limited by guarantee, not having share capital. Certain governors of
the Trust are also the trustees to the charitable company for the purposes of company law.

The current trustees of the charitable company are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' liability

Every member undertakes to contribute an amount not exceeding £10 to the assets of the company in the event of
the company being wound up during the period of membership, or within one year thereafter.

Trustees' indemnities

The school has taken out a combined insurance policy that includes buildings and contents, and liability insurance
covering employees, (Including teaching and administrative staff and governors), and third party cover arising from
negligent acts, errors and omissions where the school has a legal liability. The limit of indemnity for the main liability
cover is £25m and for governors the indemnity is £1m. Other cover included in the policy is for personal accident,
travel, and engineering plant and equipment. The total premium cost is £29,988 (2023: £31,285). In addition, the
school has in place, cyber insurance at a premium cost of £4,384 (2023: £4,384).

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees

The governars have set up procedures including a skills audit that will enable regular reviews of the mix of skills that
should be available to the governors. New governors will then be sought with these skills, either as additional
governors or replacements when existing governors stand down, It is anticipated that governars will be drawn from
the local community being either parents or guardians of pupils at the school or others that have shown an Interest
in the future wellbeing of the school and its puplls. Recruitment is through a combination of approaches to
individuals with known skills and by wider communications to those within Twickenham and Middlesex.

To ensure representation of parents on the governing body, there are six places allocated for them. Parents who
have a child at the school can seif-nominate and are selected in accordance with the Trust's Scheme of Delegation.
There are also three places allocated to staff governors, plus the Headteacher,

New governors will be appointed by the existing governors for a period of four years. At the end of a four year term,
retiring governors are eligible for re-election for a further term.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of trustees

New governors receive information packs and meet with the Chair of Governors and/or Headteacher for an
induction and to discuss the role of governors and the requirements of the school and the Trust. At the induction
meeting, key documents are provided for the new governor. Individual governors attend training courses and
conferences organised by appropriate bodies in order to ensure their knowledge and understanding is fully up to
date. The schoal is also a member of the National Governance Association which provide regular updates to all
governors on reguiations and best practice.

Organisational structure

The trustees have responsibllity for setting and monitoring the overall strategic direction of the charitable company,
approving decisions reserved to trustees and appointing key members of staff,

The trustees meet as a board three times each year. All decisions reserved to the trustees are taken by the board
as a whole. Certain decisions are delegated to the Local Governing Body (LGB) and/or ather senior leaders as
defined in the Scheme of Delegation. The LGB, which is made up of the trustees, who are alse governors, parent
and staff governors meets four times each year to consider individual school matters, items recommended to them
from sub-commitiees and recommend decisions to the board of trustees. Sub committees meet five or six times
each year to consider detailed matters and recommend decisions {o the LGB,

There are two such sub-committees;
+ Finance and Resources Committee
* Achievement Committee

Trustees of the Waldegrave Trust

Remit:
The board of trustees is responsible for:

Monitoring the performance of the school within the Trust;

Managing the Trust's resources effectively;

Appointing the Headteacher;

Ensuring that the Trust complies with charity and company law;

Operating the Trust in accordance with the Funding Agreement that has been sighed with the Secretary of
State; and

+ Exercising reasonable skill and care in carrying out their duties.

Membership:
Mrs A Davis
Mr M O'Brien
Ms F Perrow
Mr A Tanner
Ms E Tongue
Mrs V Williams

Finance and Resources Committee

Remit:
« To ensure that the school conducts its financial affairs in an organised and efficient manner, observes good
standards of financial stewardship to aveid corruption, mismanagement or maladministration;
» To ensure that all available funding is used to meet the school's aims, including educational priorities as
identified in the School Development Plan (SDP);
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Organisational structure
Remit (continued):

To undertake the monitoring, evaluating and reviewing of the budget and patterns of spending. including
benchmarking against other schools;

To approve virements (changes of allocations between budget headings} of £25,000 - £60,000. Virements
of £25,000 or less are delegated to the Headteacher. Virements of £50,000 or more require the LGB
approval,

To ensure that adeguate insurance for all considerable risks is maintained,

To ensure compliance with the Education and Skills Funding Authority’s (ESFA) Academies Trust Handbook
and the schools’ funding agreement with ESFA,;

To oversee, monitor and keep under review the school's financial procedures, including the Controls
Assurance Statement and compliance with FMSIS (Financial Management Standard in Schools) and make
any necessary recommendations for change to the LGB or board as appropriate;

To oversee, monitor and keep under review the school's risk register and mitigating actions and to highlight
any concerns to the LGB or board as appropriate;

To challenge and support the Headteacher an all matters relating to the school premises, grounds, security
and health and safety, reporting to the LGB any significant changes in practice, policy or breaches/
accidents;

To carry out regular Inspections of the premises and grounds, including periodic inspections of buildings,
plant and equipment and approve the annual statement of priorities for maintenance and development;

To inform the LGB of the results of inspections and priorities. Copies of risk assessments will be circulated
where relevant;

To oversee the procurement of contracts for services to the school e.g. cleaning, catering;

To oversee, monitor and keep under review the Health & Safety Policy, Lettings Policy and Charging Policy
for the Governing Body;

To draft medium and long term plans relating to the repair, maintenance and development of premises and
recommend action to the LGB,;

To oversee and keep under review the staffing structure in consultation with the Headteacher;

To agree the staffing establishment and structure for the school (teaching and support) in refation to the
budget and the schocl development / improvement plan;

On behalf of the board and LGB to oversee, monitor and keep under review policies relating to pay,
performance management, staff absence, staff discipline, grievance, capability and other relevant
employee related matters and make recommendations to the LGB of board as appropriate,

To oversee the recruitment and appointment procedure for all staff, including ensuring compliance with
safer recruitment requirements and best practice;

To oversee the process leading to staff reductions and redundancy;

To keep under review staff work/life balance, working conditions and well-being, including the monitoring of
staff absence,

To consider any appeal against a decision on pay grading or pay awards;

To assume the responsibilities of the Audit Committee reflecting there is currently only one school in the
Trust; and

To receive an annual General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) compliance report from the Data
Protection Officer (DFPO).

Membership:

Mr M O'Brien (Chair)
Mr C King (Vice Chair)
Mrs S Davies

Mr J Bassi

Mr A Tanner

Ms E Tongue

Mrs V Williams
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Achievement Committee

Remit:

The committee will oversae:

Student achievement across all student greups and the quality of teaching, ensuring the school provides a
high-quality learning experience and delivers a broad and balanced curriculum in keeping with the school's
aims, all pupil needs and legal requirements; and

Student weli-being, child protection, and standards of behaviour and attendance, ensuring that the school
provides a safe environment that empowers all students to contribute fully to the scheool and wider
community.

The committee will monitor and evaluate:

Schoo! standards, progress and achievement data, and statutory target setting, including analysing the
performance of all student groups, subjects and key stages, making relevant comparisons to local and
national data and analysing trends, and advising the LGB on these areas;

Child protection and safeguarding policies and procedures;

The school's contribution to student well-being, including the extent to which students feel safe, adopt
healthy lifestyles and contribute to the school and wider community; '

Standards of behaviour, the impact of exclusions in the school, attendance patterns and trends, and
associated policies;

Any matter relating to the school's curriculum, including:

- compliance with statutory requirements;

- the appropriateness and effectiveness of the curriculum for students with additional needs, including
responsibilities for students with Special Educational Needs {SEN) and disabilities;

- provision for, and progress and attainment of vuinerable groups, e.g. looked after children, young carers,
and the effectiveness of any intervention strategiss;

- the quality of teaching and learning; and

- provision and policies for sex and relationships education, religious education and collective worship.
Changes to curriculum design and delivery, considering any financial or staffing implications and making
recommendations to LGB;

The views of students and how these are taken into account, including acting as the link to the Student
Parliament;

Policies and provision for engagement of parents with the school, parental views and how these are
considered, and recommend ways in which home-schaol links can be developed,

Effectivenass of communications with parents including statutery requirements such as the complaints
policy, plus non-statutory approaches such as the website,

Effectiveness of partnerships with other schools, external agencies and the community including business,
to improve the schoel, extend the curriculum and increase the range and quality of learning experiences for
pupils;

Community links and community use of the school, monitoring and evaluating the school's contribution to
pramoting community cohesion, _

Implementation of School Development Plan and action peints from School Improvement Partner in areas
relevant to the Committea’s remit;

Arrangements for educational visits, including the appointment of a named coordinator; and

The school's work on Equality, Diversity and Inclusion.

The committee will propose recommendations for action or policy in any of the above areas as required.
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Membership:

Mrs V Walsh

Mrs A Davis

Ms A Amponsah

Mr A Godfrey (Staff Governor)

Mrs C Y Jones

Ms E Tongue (Headteacher)

Mr M Vickery

Mrs L Perks {Appointed on 13 November 2023)
Mrs C Gillies (Appointed on 13 November 2023}

Additionally, groups of governors are established to consider specific issues and make recommendations to the
LGB, these Committess include the Pay Committee, Discipline Commities and the Admissions Cocmmittee.

Ms Elizabeth Tongue, Headteacher at Waldegrave School is the accounting officer for the Trust and works closely
with both the other governors and the senior staff of The Waldegrave Trust.

The day-to-day management of the Trust rests with the Headteacher who has overall responsibility for the schoot.
The Headteacher is responsible for establishing a Senior Leadership Team, including the Business Manager and
the Deputy Headteachers.

Decisions are taken at meetings of the LGB in consideration of reports and recommendations from governors'
commitiees, the Headteacher, the School Business Manager and other senior leaders. Members of staff, in addition
to the Headteacher and Deputy Headteachers attend committee meetings to present reports in their areas of
responsibility, for example curriculum development and safeguarding.

A panel of governors undertakes the annual performance review of the Headteacher and monitors performance and
achievements against targets. The Pay Committee also undertakes to scrutinise the process of performance
reviews of all teachers. The Committee decides on pay progression in line with the pay policy.

Individual governors on the LGB are linked to strategic areas of the work of the senior leaders and the school. They
visit the school regularly. This link forms a vital part of communication between the school staff and the LGB.
Governor sub-committees assume responsibility for areas of school life, for example health and safety, special
educational needs. Monitoring and review will occur through the sub-commitiee meetings. Annually, governors
discuss and analyse examination results.

Each year the Senior Leadership Team preparas the School Development Plan (SDP} and this is subsequently
presented to governors for consideration, challenge and approval. The plan details the key priorities to improve the
school academic targets and includes strategic aims, as well as initiatives to further develop the school community.
An objective of the leadership of each school is to ensure all round excellence within the school and the best
possible education for students as well as good working conditions for staff. The SDP is supported by departmental
plans from each area of the School. These are supported by Personal Improvement Plans which form part of the
performance development (Appraisal) process. Once agreed, management has the responsibility of delivering the
pian and reporting progress on a regular basis to the various committees and ultimately the LGB.

Co-ordinated with the abjectives of the SDP is the annual financial plan and budget, which is the responsibility of the
Headteacher and the Director of Finance & Resources, |t is presented to the Finance and Resources Committee for
consideration and challenge prior to making a recommendation to the LGB. Once approved, the Director of Finance
and Resources monitors income and expenditure and will regularly report the financial status of the school to the
Headteacher, Finance and Resources Committee, and the LGB. The school budget continues to be squeezed due
rising staff costs for both teaching and non-teaching staff, the pressures to maintain and improve the school
buildings and site, and due to rising energy, recruitment and general costs. To ensure a long term plan is in place,
the Director of Finance & Resources prepares a three year plan and works with the Finance and Resources
Committee to ensure the budget delivers value for money, supports the school's strategic aims and builds up
reserves.
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Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The salary range for all staff paid on the leadership spine will be determined by reference to the provisions of the
School Teachers' Pay Conditions Document (STPCD) and will include consideration of any broader responsibilities
that attach to the role.

The Individual School Range (ISR) of seven points for the Headteacher will also be determined by reference to the
schoal size and the appropriate pasitioning of the pay range of any Deputy or Assistant Headteacher at the schoal,
as specified in the STPCD. The Governing Body will only re-determine the ISR in the circumstances specified in the
STPCD.

The five point salary range for Deputy Headteachers and Assistant Headteachers shall be determined by reference
to the STPCD, taking into account the appropriate positioning of the pay range of the Headteacher and any other
member of the leadership group at the schaol. The Governing Body will only re-determine the pay range of a
Deputy or Assistant Headteacher in circumstances specified in the STPCD.

Trade union facility time
No employees were members of any relevant trade unions in the years ended 31 August 2023 or 31 August 2024,
Therefore, none of their time was spent on union activities.

Related parties and co-operation with other organisations
The Trust does not currently maintain business relationships with any connected parties.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
Objects and aims

The Trust's objective is to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a
school offering a broad and balanced curriculum.

Charitable activities
The charitable objectives of the Trust are set down in the governing document as follows:

To provide exceptional learning opportunities for our students by:

+ Qutstanding teaching and learning. The school aims to provide outstanding teaching to promote
intellectual challenge and the highest possible achievement for all students;

* Care for the individual. The structures and ethos of the school ensure care for the individual and support
the learning of each student;

» Afit place to learn. The school aims to provide an inspirational and well run environment in which students
can learn and grow; and

+ Aspirational leadership. Every leader in the school keeps their area of responsibility under review and
strives to be the best.

Waldegrave Vision
Everyone enjoys learning, feels valued and experiences success.

Waldegrave Mission
To empower us all through:
+ Great teaching and learning;
» Positive relationships;
« Being the best we can be;
* Embracing the new;
* Great leadership;
+ Being open-minded and respectful;
» Sharing common values and practices; and
» Developing strong partnerships

Waldegrave School Rule

We show mutual respect and understanding for everyone, through courteous and cansiderate behaviour at all
times.
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Public benefit

The trustees have taken The Charity Commission's specific guidance on public benefit (contained within the
guidance document “The Advancement cf Education for the Public Benefit") into consideration in preparing their
statements on public benefit contained within this trustees’ annual report.

Benefits & Beneficiaries

In accordance with its charitable objectives, the charitable company strives to advance the education of the pupils
attending the school. The charitable company’s primary beneficiaries are therefore the pupils, and benefits to pupils
are provided through continuing to maintain a high standard of education throughout the school.

Trustees’ Assessment of Public Benefit
In order to determine whether or not the charitable company has fulfilled its charitable objectives for public benefit,
the trustees gather evidence of the success of the Trust's activities.

STRATEGIC REPORT
Achievements and performance

The governors use the following key measures to assess the success of the activities of the charitable company:

+ Headteacher reports to governors covering all aspects of school operations, performance and staff and
pupil welfare;

+ Self-evaluation of all areas of the school against Ofsted criteria as shown in the Self Evaluation Form
(SEF},

» Use of external verification of all areas of school improvement through Schoal Improvement Partner;

» Examination results measured against targets set at the beginning of each academic year and national
benchmarks;

* Progress made against the School Development Plan and budgets;

+ Internal departmental monitoring by middle and senior managers;

» Performance development (Appraisal} procedures; and

» School Improvement partner commissioned by LGB to review school evaluation.

Details of performance for the year can be found on page 10 in the review of key performance indicators.

Financial review
Most of the Trust's income comes from the Education and School Funding Agency (ESFA} in the form of recurrent

grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. These grants and the associated expenditure are shown
as restricted general funds in the statement of financial activities.

The school also receives grants from the ESFA for capital and in accordance with the Charities SORP ‘Accounting
and Reporting by Charities', such grants are shown in the statement of financial activities as restricted income in the
fixed asset fund.

Other sources of income are 'unrestricted' and these are mainly monies collected from parents for school trips,
outings and other extracurricular activities. Also included in 'unrestricted’ funds are voluntary donations made by
parents to support school life and lettings income.

Total income for the year was £10,829,477 (2023: £10,509,448) and total expenditure was £10,689,291 {2023:
£9,893,962) resulting in net income of £140,186 (2023: £615,486).

The Waldegrave Trust held a surplus balance in restricted funds at 31 August 2024 of £085,784 (2023: surplus of
£1,681,102) excluding the fixed asset funds but including a pension reserve asset of £nil {2023: £nil) and
unrestricted funds of £1,901,214 (2023: £1,358,536). The governors believe the fund balances are adequate to
provide sufficient working capital in times of possible future funding turbulence, to provide a cushion to deal with
unexpected emergencies, meet the required contributions to the pension plans as instructed by the local authority/
UK Chancellor, and to fulfil the objectives detailed in the SDF.
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FRS 102 requires an annual accounting valuation of the Local Government Pension Scheme (see Note 23) at 31
August each year. Its purpose is to facilitate consistent comparison of pension positions between employers and
has no effect of the employer cash contributions to the scheme. The Scheme is subject to a friennial funding
valuation {last compieted 31 March 2022 and updated to 31 August 2024 by a gualified independent actuary), the
purpose of which is to assess the on-going financial position of the Fund and to determine the employers’ cash
contribution rates for 3 years. It will aim to ensure that each employer's share of the Fund's assets together with the
expected investment returns and contributions will be sufficient to meet the Fund's future benefit payments.

The value of the defined benefit pension scheme as required by FRS 102 shows an asset of £nil at 31 August 2024
{2023: asset of £nil) after restricting the asset by £1.45m to take account of the asset ceiling.

Reserves policy

The governors review the reserves level annually. This review encompasses income and expenditure streams, the
need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves, The governors believe that the funding
received In any one year should be used to support the children on roll at the time but realise it is prudent to carry a
certain level of reserves. The governors have been increasing the level of reserves over the last three years to
support planned capital investment in the school infrastructure which is anticipated to take place in 2025. This
infrastructure project is costed and designed and currently is out to tender.

The level of cash held will be used for, including but not limited to, sufficient working capital to enable the school to
cover delays between spending and receipt of monies such as grants, to accumuiate funds towards a capital
project, to manage unfunded increases in student numbers and to provide a reserve to deat with unexpected
emergencies.

Whilst the school has maintained significant investment in improving the infrastructure of the site over the last four
years, the age of some of the buildings can result in financial and operational pressures which would be an example
of such unexpected emergencies. Maintaining staffing levels due to challenges in recruitment or meeting increased
pay and pension costs following late negotiations would be other examples. In addition, all schools, businesses and
individuals have been impacted by the global rise in the cost of living. This has impacted utility prices as well as the
cost and availability of most resources and services. We anticipate that financiaf impact of increased staff costs as
well as managing higher utility and other costs will continue to impact future years. We are satisfied that we have
sufficient financial resources in-year, combined with our accumulated reserves, to manage this situation and not
impact the Trust's ability to remain a going concern.

The Trust's unrestricted funds as at 31 August 2024 were £1,901,214 (2023: £1,358,536) and the Trust's restricted
funds {excluding pension reserve and restricted fixed asset reserves) were £985,784 (2023: £1,681,102).

Academy Trust funds that can only be realised by disposing of tangible fixed assets were £22,259,115 (2023:
£22,056,289).

The Academy Trust's share of the Local Government Pension Scheme currently has a asset of £nil (2023; asset of
£nil) after restricting the asset by £1.45m to take account of the asset ceiling.

Disclasure of funds is also provided in note 17 fo the financial statements.

Investment policy

The governors' investment powers are set down in the Memorandum and Articles of Association which permit the
investment of monlies of the Trust that are not immediately required for its purposes in such investments as may be
thought fit subject to any restrictions which may from time to time be imposed or required by law.

The Trust's current policy is to invest surplus funds in short-term cash deposits for fixed periods of no longer than 80
days. Periodically, management will review interest rates and compare with other investment opportunities. Any
change in policy requires the approval of governors. In this academic year of operation, It was agreed that the risk is
diversified and surplus funds are held in interest bearing instant access accounts in an alternative institution to the
current account.
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Key performance indicators

We have continued to build upon our commitment to delivering the highest standards of teaching and learning for all
of our students. The introduction of a new Teaching and Learning policy was complemented by a planned CPD
programme for all staff. The policy draws of the latest pedagogical research and focuses on on four key principles
{(BEAR):

» Building knowledge and understanding steadily
+ Enquiring through questioning

« Assessing for learning

+ Reviewing

With an increasing number of EAL students the school has invested furthet in support for early readers, both In
terms of specialist programmes and specialist staffing. Our staff training has focused on developing disciplinary
literacy to ensure students can access the curricuium and achieve strong qualifications,

Following the end of disruption caused by COVID restrictions, it has been wonderful to see an increase in the
number of trips and activities offered to our students. This has included overseas residential trips being offered to all
GCSE language students and a PGL residential for K83 students. In addition our extensive programme of speakers
and workshops has helped to raise students’ aspirations and supported students into a range of university courses
and careers.

This year we focused significant resources on improving student attendance: following a national increase in
absence rates post-covid. We have increased our support from the Education Welfare service and seen a reduction
in persistent absence, with the school in the upper quartile nationally. However, this will continue to be a focus of our
work.

We are proud of our school site and facilities, and maintaining and improving them remains a focus in every
academic year. In 2023/24, we have refurbished our library and inclusion areas providing state of the art facilities for
literacy, research and quiet reading. We have enhanced our inclusion area providing a dedicated classroom and
enhanced facilities for small intervention groups as well as improved administration facilities. We have built a new
dark room for our photography students as well. In addition, we have started our programme of improving
classrooms with new touchscreen smart boards in every classroom. This has improved visibility for students and
enhanced the learning experience for both staff and students. Our Chromebook roll out programme is now fully
embedded with each student being offered the oppertunity to own a Chromebook and enjoy oppoertunities for
enhanced digital learning whilst maintaining our core, traditional teaching methods. Finally, we have improved our
general site’s health and safety with a comprehensive fire door replacement programme, refurbished toilets,
asbestos removal and new fire alarm system. In 2024/25 we will continue our classroom and corridar improvement
programme and invest in new staff desktop camputers.

The school is committed to developing the future of the teaching profession and to that end has developed new
partnerships with Higher Education Institutions particularly focusing on developing more flexible pathways into
teaching for those seeking to study part-time. This has resulted in increased numbers of trainee teachers joining the
Waldegrave Training Alliance.

Finaily, we would like to thank all members of the school community for ensuring that our schoo! values, enjoy,
achieve and empower underpin our students’ experience at Waldegrave. Yet again we are extremely proud of the
excellent outcomes our students achieved as a result of their own hard work and the expertise and commitment of
our staff. We would also like to thank our parent community for the invaluable support they have offered the school.

-10 -
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Key performance indicators
Key achievements in our school this year include:

* Waldegrave School continues to be oversubscribed with significant demand for places in years 7 and 12;

» Robust financial management and scrutiny, with a focus on value for money and transparancy of financial
perfarmance;

= Effective management of school budget allowed the school to invest in significant capital development;

*+ Progress was made with the school's digital strategy: new interactive screens in most classrooms,
broadband switches replaced throughout school to improve wi-fi access;

+ Our commitment to keeping students safe in school has resulted in investment in new monitoring and
filtering systems;

+ Increased our commitment to developing our students' cultural capital through trips and enrichment,
Residential trips were offered to all Year 10 GCSE MFL students. A residential PGL trip was run for
students in Year 8;

* Significant redevelopment of the school site including the replacement of all fire doors and a number of
other Internal doors, removal of asbestos celling and new lighting in DT / Hall corridor, refurbishment of
library and inclusion area, refurbished orange toilets;

* Parental engagement has increased through the introduction of The Parent Promise and PTA restructure,
The Friends of Waldegrave;

* The Friends of Waldegrave have funded Student Parliament Committee projects such as improving outside
space buying new plants for Digby Court; and

* Qutstanding results at GCSE and A-level demonstrates a whole school commitment to excellent teaching
which has been underpinned by a commitment to the latest pedagogical practices. This has resulted in
excellent sixth form destinations across a wide range of degrees and further education courses.

Waldegrave School GCSE Results Five Year Trend

Please note that due to changes in the examinations, the results in 2020 and 2021 are not directly comparable with
the other years due tc the Covid-19 pandemic. The 2020 results were based on Centre Assessed Grades and 2021
results were based on Teacher Assessed Grades rather than the normal examination route.

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Number of students in progress measures 204 197 193 200 185
Attainment 8 66 67 65 85 64
5 GCSEs including English and maths at] 90% 92% 90% 92% %
Grades 4+
5 GCSEs including English and maths at] 76% 81% 74% 76% 74%
Grades 5+
GCSEs Grades 1-9 100% 99% 100% 100% 99%
GCSEs Grades 7-9 53% 58% 53% 48% 46%
English Baccalaureate {4+ English and Maths} 61% 58% 58% 45% 48%
English Baccataureate {5+ English and Maths) 54% 51% 47% 38% 37%
Entering English Baccalaureate B4% 52% 61% 56% 58%
Pupil Premium Students achieving Grades 4-9| 68% 81% 61% T7% 84%
in both English and Maths

Students, including key groups (SEN, Disadvantaged) made good progress in all curriculum areas regardless of
their prior attainment. Attainment is well above national average in all elements.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Waldegrave School A Level Results Five Year Trend
The table below shows the cumulative results for our A Level results.

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Number of students in progress data 193 190 193 186 181
Average Grade B+ A- B+ B B
A* 19% 22% 25% 1% 10%
A*-A 51% 55% 54% 43% 36%
A*-B 78% 84% 80% 1% 67%
A*-C 95% 94% 33% 88% 89%
A*-D 96% 98% 28% 96% 7%
A*-E 100% 100% 100% 99% 100%
ALPS Grade 1 1 2 nfa n/a

Achievement across the vast majority of subjects was once again high and well above national averages. 36% of all
grades were A"-A and 89% were A*-C. 32 students were awarded all A*-A grades, including 7 who achieved a full
complement of A* grades. The results for English Literature were particularly impressive, with 27% of the cohort
achieving A* grades,

These fantastic outcomes translated into similarly impressive destinations. 84.12% of applicants gained places at
their firm choice universities, with a further 16.47% being accepted to their insurance choices. We were especially
pleased to see 3 students achieving places at Oxbridge, as well as 2 going on to study Medicine, 1 for Dentistry and
2 for Veterinary Science, We are also supportive of students following other pathways and were delighted that 1
student achieved a place to study at Conservatoire and another won a place a competitive degree apprenticeship
programme.

Plans for future periods

In 2024, a new 3 year Strategic Plan was agreed which places an emphasis on 6 key areas: Wellbeing, Curriculum,
Teaching, Technology, Community and Leadership.

For 2024-27, the whole school strategic aims are:

1. Deliver high quality teaching that meets the needs of all learners in a time of increased complex needs
2, Support disadvantaged students to achieve in line with their peers

3. Develop future teachers and leaders of education

4. Pricritise health, wellbeing and personal development for all

5. Empower students to become responsible citizens and future leaders

8. Recruit and retain the very best staff

7. Ensure technology is utilised efficiently, effectively and innovatively

8. Develop parental communication and engagement

9. Manage our budgef to enable investment in scheol facilities and environment

10. Manage any change in government education policy smoothly, including the new OFSTED framework
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Principal risks and uncer{ainties
The governars maintain a risk register which is a living document and regularly reviewed.

Governor sub-committees have the responsibility for monitoring the Trust's exposure to individual risks that are
assigned to them within the following categories:

Strategic risks;
Governance risks;
Financial risks;
Operational risks;
Compliance risks; and
Reputational risks.

All risks are assessed and awarded grades that indicate “likelihood” and “potential impact’. Steps to control and
mitigate risks are also well documented.

The governars have identified the following key risks to the Trust:

« Continued impact, financial and non-financial, surrounding the uncertainty regarding inflation/ cost of living;

+ Increased staffing and related costs eg. salaries, pensions, well-being;

+ Pressures on recruitment in key subjects and specialisms in the local area, and in competing against
industries who offer more hybrid warking; and

* Prassuras on budget in maintaining and refurbishing cld buildings;

Governors manage the financial risk via the Finance and Resources Committee which sees regular updates of the
budget monitor report. Financial pressures on the budget are planned to be mitigated through ensuring continued
value for money across all areas. Additional parental donations and income generated from the school faciiities will
continue. There Is a critical incident plan in place which is regularly reviewed.

Non-financial risks are mitigated through a clear and open system of SLT meetings, Chairs of Governors meetings,
sub-committee meetings and LGB meetings where a range of topics are discussed and minuted. The risk register is
regularly reviewed by the Finance and Resources Committee which prompts a dialogue surrounding non-financial
changes affecting the school and education in general.

The Trust takes estate management seriously following the recommendation of Good Estates Management in
Schools {GEMS). The Trust's estate is safe and well maintained, complying with relevant regulations and best
practice. We have a clear estates strategy that is shared with stakeholders and we invest not only in robust
maintenance but In significance estates improvement each year. The Trust invests in its estate through a number of
means including delegated grants, donations and successful Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) grants.

Core Values of the Trust

The school develops its own vision and values,

Puts teaching and learning at the heart of what we do;

Teachers and leaders model excellent practice in and out of the classroom;

Teachers and leaders are empowered in their roles and careers through excellent and continuing
Continuing Professional Development (CPD); and

5. We work positively with local schools to support the wider community.

BwN =

The future development of the Trust is detailed in the SDP, approved by the LGB in the Autumn 2023. In the plan,
there are clear objectives with specific and measurable success criteria laid out. These are evaluated by Governors
regularly.

Fundraising

The Trust's primary source of funding comes from the UK Government., The Trust does not carry out any active
fundraising activities other than for external charities. We do receive voluntary donations from the PTA and other
parties.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor
The auditor, RSM UK Audit LLP, is deemed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2008,

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors
The trustees have confirmed that, as far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
auditor is unaware. Each of the trustees has confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought to have

taken as trustees in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has
been communicated to the auditor.

The trustees' report is approved by order of the board of trustees and the strategic report (included therein) is
approved by the board of trustees at a meeting on .11/12/2024  and signed on its behalf by:

£

Mr A Tanner
Trustee and Co-Chair of Governors
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have averall responsibility for ensuring the Trust has an effective and appropriate
system of control related to financial and non-financial risks. Such a system is designed to monitor, manage and
mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss,

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbock and competency
framework for governance,

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of the Trust and Waldegrave School to the
accounting officer for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement
between the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer is responsible for reporting to the
board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here suppiements that described in the Trustees’ Report. The board of
trustees met three times this year, attendance at the meetings was as follows. This was supplemented through
regular weekly meeting with the Co-Chairs of Governors and the Headteacher and ad-hoc meeting of the Co-Chairs
of Governors with the Deputy Heads and Business Manager where appropriate.

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

Mrs C A Davis (Trustee and Co-Chair of Gavernors)

Ms F Perrow (Trustee)

Mr A Tanner (Trustee and Co-Chair of Governors)

Ms E Tongue (Trustee, Governor and Accounting Officer)
Mr M R O'Brien (Trustee and Governor)

Mrs V Williams {Trustee and Governor)

W W W W W
0 W W W W W

The board provides strong governance and rigorous chailenge with members bringing diverse experience and skills.
The Co-chairs of Governors also meet with the Headteacher weekly. The information provided by the school is
excellent and provides for robust discussion, questioning and debate. The information is detailed and outlines areas
for development and improvement. The Director of Finance & Resources and deputy head join meetings when
invited and attend sub-committee meetings. Key areas thai the board has reviewed during 2023/24 have been
organisational structure and external collaborations, staff well-being, recruitment and retention as well as future
capital investments. The board has closely monitored how the school has managed the industrial action that
impactad this year.

The board meets less than six times a year however all board members also chair or regularly attend subcommittee
meetings where matters are considered in detail. Financial information is regularly shared and scrutinised.

Governance reviews
The Trust carries out a self-assessment annually and completes a skills and training audit when recruiting new
members are appointed. A governors' impact statement is produced annually and shared on the website,
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Local Governing body for Waldegrave School has formally met three times in the academic year fram 1
September 2023 to 31 August 2024,

Attendance during the year at meetings of the local governing body was as follows:
Governors Meetings attended Out of possible

Ms A Ampensah

Mr J Bassi

Ms S Davies

Mrs A Davis (Co-Chair of Governors)

Mrs C Gilles {(Appointed 13 November 2023)
Mr A Godfrey

Mrs C Y Jones

Mr C King

Mr M O'Brien

Mrs L Perks {Appointed 13 November 2023)
Mrs M Rook (Appointed 13 November 2023)
Mr A Tanner

Ms E Tongue (Headteacher)

Mr M Vickery

Mrs V Walsh

Mrs V Williams

CILODN G 0 0 I ) ) W W W
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Review of value for money _

The accounting officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use of public
resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal
outcomes, as well as estate safety and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during -
each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use
of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the Trust has delivered improved value for money
during the year by:

1. Careful spend of the additional government grants relating to the national tutoring programme.

2. Major procurements involve comparison of tenders from a range of bidders to ensure best valus, the
government procurement tool is used where appropriate. A competitive tender framework has been used
for the renewal of groundwork providers.

Contract review at each contract renewal. o

A review of internal systems, streamlining and supporting with new software packages where appropriate.
Detalled forecasting of future year budgets and including a detailed and integrated curriculum led planning
approach.

oW

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of intemnal control has been in place in The Waldegrave Trust for the pericd 1 September 2023 to 31
August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. Internal control takes
many forms in the Trust, this year the annual internal audit has been completed by Strictly Education with parts
completed by Carsten’s & Robinson Ltd and Safeguarding Works Ltd.

This year, the intemal review completed by Strictly Education focused on HR Compliance. Carsten’s & Robinson
completed a science health and safety audit. Safeguarding Works Ltd completed a whote school safeguarding audit.
Summary reports were produced by these independent auditors and shared with the Finance and Resources
Committee who in turn report to the LGB, All reports concluded that appropriate and robust controls were in place
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Capacity to handle risk

The governors have reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial and
compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The trustees are of the view that there is a
formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that has been in place
for the year ended 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the trustees’ annual report and financial
statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board.

The governors have a Risk Register which identifies Strategic and Reputational risks, Operational risks, Compliance
risks and Financial risks, the likelihood of occurrence and impact along with response and mitigating control
procedures.

The risk and control framework

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular it includes: '

» Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and pericdic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Beard of Governors;

« Regular reviews by the Finance and Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

+ Clear estates management strategy ensuring compliance with GEMS and statutory maintenance guidance

as well as continue estates improvement through successful CIF bids and investment from the school

budget;

Setting targets to méeasure financial and other performance;

Clearly defined purchasing {asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

Delegation of authority, segregation of duties and accountable budget holders;

Identification and management of risks;

Ofsted preparation plan regularly reviewed; and

Support provided by the School Improvement Partner.

Examples of checks and controls for these risks were as follows:

Reducing pupil-based funding - Pupil recruitment into both the sixth form and year 7 is closely monitored by the
leadership team and reported to the Finance and Resources Committee.

Tight budgets - Tight long term funding environment is monitored by a detailed review of the 3 year budget and the
management accounts at each Finance and Resources Committee. The school regularly reviews the ESFA bulletin
for changes in funding and the accounting officer is a member of the local schools forurn.

Unfavourable Ofsted report - The latest Ofsted inspection was completed 26 September 2018 and was graded
Outstanding. To support this status governors make regular visits to the school, are informed via the committees’
and the Headteacher's reports on the progress of the school and complete regular self-evaluation of their own
performance as governors. Senior Leadership Team regularly meet to discuss and re-evaluate. Governors and
Senior Leadership Team meet throughout the year with the School Improvement Partner.

Managing conflicts of interest

The Trust maintains a register of interests for all members of staff involved in its financial management, as well as
all senior leaders and budget holders. It also maintains a register of interests for all governors and any conflicts are
declared at the beginning of all governor meetings.

The register of interests is referenced, as appropriate, during all purchases. The Director of Finance & Resources
has oversight of this and is aware of any potential areas of conflict. The school does not maintain any joint ventures,
associate or subsidiary relationships.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of effectiveness

The accounting officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of intemal control. During the
year ended 31 August 2024, this review has been informed by:

* the work of the external auditor,

+ the internal scrutiny programme;

+ the financial management and governance self-assessment process; and

« the work of the Senior Leadership Team within The Waldegrave Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance and Resources Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system Is in place.

Conclusion .
Rased on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the

opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and
control.

Approved by order of the board of frustees on 11/12/2024 and signed on its behalf by:
*{}S\ \ ) 239 m

Mr A Tanner Ms E '&&e \

Trustee and Co-Chair of Governors Trustee, Governor and Accounting Officer
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of The Waldegrave Trust, | have cansidered my responsibility to notify the Trust board of
trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA} of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management, under the
funding agreement between the Trust and the Secretary of Stafe for Education. As part of my consideration | have
had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Trust Handbook 2023, including responsibilities for estates
safety and management.

| confirm that | and the academy trust are able to identify any material irregular or Improper use of funds by the
Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academies trust's agreement
and the Academies Trust Handbook 2023,

i confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriefy or funding non-compiiance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the dafe of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and

ESFA.
{ Oj@—d’{/\

Ms E Tongue
Accounting Officer

11/12/2024
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES

The trustees {who are also the directors of The Waldegrave Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsitle
for preparing the trustees' report (including the strategic report) and the financial statements in accordance with the
Annual Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, the
trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its
income and expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to
2024, :

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006,
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA and DfE have been applied for the purposes
intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation In other jurisdictions.

11/12/2024
Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on ...eciiiienen. and signed on its behalf by:

S )

MrATanneF
Trustee and Co-Chair of Governors

.20 -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE WALDEGRAVE
TRUST

Opinien

We have audited the financial statements of The Waldegrave Trust (the "charitable company") for the year ended 31
August 2024 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows
and notes ‘o the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland" (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), and the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

In our apinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended,;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these requirements. We beiieve
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concem hasis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable company's ability to continue
as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement In the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinicn, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees’ Report, which Includes the Directors' Report and the Strategic Report
prepared for the purposes of company law, for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the Directors' Report and the Strategic Report inciuded within the Trustees’ Report have been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

-1 -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE WALDEGRAVE
TRUST (CONTINUED)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors' Report or the Strategic Report
included within the Trustees' Raport.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires

us to report to you if, in our opinicn:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of frustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

- As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set out on page 20, the trustees (who act as
trustees for the charitable activities of the charltable company are also the directors of the charitable company for
the purposes of company law) are respensible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit are to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, to perform audit procedures to help
identify instances of non-compliance with other laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial -
statements, and to respond appropriately to identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations
identified during the audit.

In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the
financial statements dus to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due fo fraud through designing and implementing appropnate responses and to respond
appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit,

Howsver, it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, to
ensure that the entity's operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations and for
the prevention and detection of fraud.

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, inciuding fraud, the audit
engagement team:

+ gbtained an understanding of the nature of the sector, including the legal and regulatory framework that the
charitable company operates in and how the charitable company is complying with the legal and regulatory
framework;

* inquired of management, and those charged with governance, about their own identification and assessment of
the risks of irregularities, including any known actual, suspected or alleged instances of fraud;

+ discussed matters about non-compliance with laws and regulations and how fraud might occur including
assessment of how and where the financial statements may be susceptible to fraud.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE WALDEGRAVE
TRUST (CONTINUED)

As a result of these procedures we consider the most significant laws and regulations that have a direct impact on
the financial statements are FRS 102, Charities SORP (FRS 102), Companies Act 2008, Education and Skills
Funding Agency’s Academy Trust Handbook, Academies Accounts Direction and tax legislation. We performed audit
procedures to detect non-compliances which may have a material impact on the financial statements which included
reviewing the financial statements including the Governors’ Report and evaluating relevant advice received from
external advisors.

The most significant laws and regulations that have an indirect impact on the financial statements are those in
relation to the Education Inspection Framework under the Education Act 2005 {as amended), Keeping Children Safe
in Education undet the Education Act 2002, the UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR) and the Data
Protection Act 2018. We performed audit procedures to inquire of management and those charged with governance
whether the charitable company is in compliance with these faw and regulations and Inspected correspondence with
regulatory authorities.

The audit engagement team identified the risk of management override of controls as the area where the financial
statements were most susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. Audit procedures performed included but
were not limited to testing manual journal entries and other adjustments, evaluating the business rationale in
relation to significant, unusual transactions and transactions entered into outside the normal course of business,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: https://iwww.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's repert and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

gsriuL Aiax LLf

{Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

3rd Floor

Portland

25 High Street

Crawley

West Sussex

RH10 1BG

12/12/24
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total
Funds General Fixed Asset 2024 2023
Funds Funds
Notes £ £ £ £ £
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 15,968 500 123,599 140,067 328,744
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 559,265 9,920,996 - 10,480,261 10,002,455
- Teaching school 4 - 67,256 - 67,256 21,973
Other trading activities 5 139,095 - - 139,085 155,544
Investments 6 2,798 - - 2,798 732
Total . 717,126 9,988,752 123,599 10,829,477 10,509,448
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
- Educational operations 8 174,448 9,637,705 840,679 10,652,832 9,861,044
- Teaching school 8 - 36,459 - 36,459 32,918
Total 7 174,448 9,674,164 840,679 10,689,291 9,893,962
Net income/(expenditure} 7 542,678 314,588 (717,080) 140,186 615,486
Transfers between funds 17 - (919,9086) 919,906 - -
Other recognised gains/{losses)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit
schemes 23 - {90,000) - {90,000) {84,000)
Net movement in funds 542,678 (695,318) 202,826 50,186 531,486
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 1,358,536 1,681,102 22,056,289 25,095,927 24,564,441
Total funds carried forward 1,901,214 985,784 22259115 25,146,113 25,095,927
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024

Company registration number 08130508

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

~ Net assets excluding pension asset
Defined benefit pension scheme asset
Total net assets

Funds of the Trust:

Restricted funds

- Restricted fixed asset funds

- Restricted income funds

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Notes

12

13
14

15

23

17

17

2024
£ £
22,259,115
73,487
206,898
3,615,331
3,895,716
(1,008,718)
2,886,998
25,146,113
25,146,113
22,259,115
985,784
23,244,899
1,901,214
25,148,113

2023

£ E

22,056,289
102,176
443,704
4,022,513
4,568,393
{1,628,755)

3,039,638

25,095,927

25,085,827

22,056,289

1,681,102

23,737,391

1,358,536

25,095,927

The flna/nmal statements on pages 24 to 47 were approved by the board of trustees and authorised for issue

Mr A Tanner )
Trustee and Co-Chair of Governors

and are signed on their behalf by:
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash
equivalents in the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
year

2024

Notes £ £
20 509,926

2,798

123,599

{1,043,505)
{917,108)
(407,182)
4,022,513

21

3,615,331

2023
£ £
1,892,231
732
212,356
(518,241)
(305,153)
1,587,078
2,435,435

4,022,513
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1 Accounting policies

General infermation

The Waldegrave Trust is a charitable company, limited by guarantee, incorporated and registered in England
and Wales. The address of its principal place of business is given on page 1 and the nature of its operations
are set out in the Trustees' Report.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out beiow.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Trust have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Repubiic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting
and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their
financial statements in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by
ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. The Trust is a public benefit entity under FRS 102
and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102,

The financial statements are presented in sterling which is also the functionat currency of the Trust.

Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole £1, except where otherwise
indicated.

Going concern

The governors assess whether the use of going concem is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast doubt on the ability of the charitable company to
continue as a going concem, The governors make this assessment in respect of a period of at least 12
months from the date of approval of these financial statements and have conciuded that the Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material
uncertainties about the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. In making their assessment, the
governors have considered the following factors;

The ESFA General Annual Grant income for the year ended 31 August 2024 and 31 August 2025 is expected
to be in line or in excess of the current year.

Review and management of costs has resulted in a net surplus, before depreciation, being generated in the
year ended 31 August 2024 and surpluses are forecast in both 2025 and 2026.

As at 31 August 2024 the Trust held cash reserves of £3,615,331 and cash flow expectations indicate that the
Trust can meet all liabilities as they fall due.

On this basis the Governors consider it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Income

All income is recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount
can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Wnere income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is
received, the income is accrued.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1 Accounting policies {Continued)

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital granis are
recognised when there is entitiement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended. Unspent amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund.

Sponsorship ingome :

Sponsorship income provided to the Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the statement of
financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related conditions),
whare the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a recsivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities is recognised at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable in the period it is receivable and to the extent the Trust has provided the goods or services.

\nterest receivable
Interest receivable is included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis, and is stated
inclusive of related tax credits.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and
support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs
of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the Trust's educational operations to further its charitable aims for the benefit of
the beneficiaries, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Trust apportioned to
charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

items capitalised as tangible fixed assets are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for
impairment. Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it is probable that such costs will generate future
economic benefits. All other costs of repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of financial
activities as incurred.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freghold land, so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their useful lives on the following bases:

Land Not depreciated

Buildings Straight line 25 to 50 years with nil residual value
Computer equiprent Straight line 36 months with nil residual value
Fixtures fittings and equipment Straight line 36 months with nil residual value
Motor vehicles Straight line 36 months with nil residual value

Residual value is calculated on prices prevailing at the reporting date, after estimated costs of disposal, for the
asset as if it were at the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shorifalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recoghised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabilittes are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of econemic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Trust anticipates it will pay to settle
the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must provide.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Stock

Educational materials are valued at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and
sell.

Financial instruments
The Trust has chosen to adopt Sections 11.and 12 of FRS 102 in full in respect of financial instruments.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1 Accounting policies {Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Trust becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. :

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual
obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legal form.

Financial assets, which include trade debtars, other debtors and accrued income, are initially measured at
transaction price {including transaction costs) and subsequently carried at amaortised cost, being transaction
price less any amounts settled and impairment losses.

Financial liabilities, which include trade creditors, other creditors and accruals, are initially measured at
transaction price (including transaction costs) and subsequently carried at amortised cost, being transaction
price less any amounts settled,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset only when there is a current legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts and the intention to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights to cash flows expire or are settled, or
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to another party, or if some significant risks
and rewards of ownership are retained but control of the asset has transferred to another party that is able to
sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party. A financial liability (or part thereof} is derecognised
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Taxation

The Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categaries
covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Short-term Employment Benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay} are recognised as
an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the Academy Trust. The cost of any unused
holiday entitement the Academy Trust expects to pay in future periods is recognised in the period the
employees' services are rendered. ;

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS'} and the
Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'), which are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is & substantially level percentage
of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the
basis of quadrennial valuations using a projected unit method. The TPS is an unfunded multi-employer
scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently there is insufficient information
to use defined benefit accounting, it is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting
purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate. Differences between
contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately. Pension scheme assets
are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit
method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of retum on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are
updated at each reporting date. The amounts charged to net income are the current service costs and the
costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settiements and curtailments. They are included as part of
staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement
of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on
the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period
by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the
scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised as other recognised gains and
losses.

Actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset cailing are recognised immediately as other recognised
gains and fosses.

The LGPS assets are managed by the scheme trustees at scheme level, and the determination / allocation of
assets to each individual employer in the scheme is managed by the scheme actuary. The assets are
allocated to each employer for accounting purposes based on the valuation of the assets at the latest triennial
valuation as adjusted for subsequent contributions received from the employer, asset returns and benefit
payments made (either on a cash basis or actuarial basls).

The retirement benefit obligation recognised represents the deficit or surplus in the defined benefit plans. Any
surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/
donor and Include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Agency arrangements

The Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from the ESFA. Payments received from the
ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as the
Trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The Trust is entitled to use an
allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of financial activities.
The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 25.

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future evenis that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resuiting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (Continued)

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit obligation depends on a number
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions obligation at 31 August 2024. Any differences between
the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation woulld impact on the carrying
amount of the pensicn abligation.

Critical areas of judgement

Determining the existence of a minimum funding requirement for the Local Government Pension Scheme to
be included in the asset ceiling in measuring and recognising a surplus in the scheme. This judgement is
based on an assessment of the nature of the scheme as a statutory scheme and Its inherent implied
continuance as well as the operation of the primary and secondary contributions.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2024 2023

£ £ £ £

Private sponsorship - 500 500 -
Capital grants : - 123,599 123,599 298,808
Other donations 15,968 - 15,968 29,936
15,968 124,099 140,087 328,744

The income from donations and capital grants was £140,067 (2023: £328,744) of which £15,968 was
unrestricted (2023: £29,936), £500 was restricted (2023: £nil) and £123,599 was restricted fixed assets (2023:
£208,808). o
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THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

4

Funding for the Trust's charitable activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Funding for academy trust's educational
operations
DfE/ESFA grants
General annual grant (GAG) - 6,638,922 6,638,922 8,349,032
Other DFE/ESFA grants:
- Teachers pension - 164,125 164,125 83,156
- Pupil premium - 125,706 125,706 124,402
- Supplementary grant - 135,399 135,399 203,838
- 16-19 Core education funding - 2,148,271 2,148,271 2,038,745
- Teachers pay - 118,561 118,561 -
- Others - 40,654 40,654 129,250
- 9,371,638 9,371,638 8,928,424
Other government grants
Local authority grants - 549,358 549,358 564,186
Other incaming resources 559,265 - 559,265 509,845
559,265 9,920,996 10,480,261 10,002,455
Teaching school
Teaching school income - 67,256 67,256 21,873

The income from funding for charitable activities was £10,547,517 {2023: £10,024,428) of which £559,265
was unrestricted (2023: £508,845) and £9,988,252 was restricted (2023: £9,514,583).

Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023
£ £ £ £

Hire of facilities 139,7095 - 139,095 153,424
Teaching scheol - - - 2,120
139,095 - 139,005 155,544

The income from other trading activities was £139,095 (2023: £155,544} of which £139,095 was unrestricted

(2023: £153,424) and £nil was restricted (2023: £2,120).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

6 Investment income
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
interest from short term deposits 2,798 - 2,798 732

The income from funding for investment income was £2,798 (2023: £732) of which £2,798 was unrestricted
{2023: £732),

7 Expenditure

Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £
Academy's educational operations
- Direct costs 6,310,135 - 798,202 7,108,337 6,454,487
- Allocated support costs 1,615,223 1,441,225 488,047 3,544,485 3,406,557
Teaching school
- Direct costs 23,908 - 279 24,187 23,687
- Allocated support costs 9,224 - 3,048 12,272 9,231
7,958,490 1,441,225 1,289,576 10,689,291 9,893,962
Net income/{expenditure) for the year includes: 2024 2023
£ £
Operating lease rentals 575 575
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability {59,000) {9,000)
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 840,679 725,524
Fees payable to RSM UK Audit LLP and its associates in respect of both audit
and non-audit services are as follows:
- Audit 24,250 23,100
- Other assurance services 3,730 3,388
- All other non-audit services 11,710 11,148
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)})

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

8 Charitable activities

Direct costs
Educational operations
Teaching school

Support costs
Educational operations
Teaching school

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2024 2023

£ £ £ £

174,448 6,933,889 7,108,337 6,454 487

- 24,187 24187 - 23,687

- 3,544,495 3,544,495 3,408,557

- 12,272 12,272 9,231

174,448 10,514,843 10,689,291 9,893,962

The expenditure on charitable activities was £10,689,291 (2023: £9,893,962) of which £174,448 was
unrestricted (2023; £204 585}, £9,674,164 was restricted (2023: £8,964,028) and £840,679 was restricted

fixed assets (2023: £725,349).

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs
Depreciation

Technology costs

Premises costs

Legal costs

Other support costs
Governance costs

Teaching Educational Total Total
school  operations 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
9,224 1,615,223 1,624,447 1,598,205

- 840,679 840,679 728,524

- 68,335 68,335 55,814

- 600,546 800,546 537,194

- 20,000 20,000 8,714

3,048 357,219 360,267 452,603

- 42,493 42,493 37,834
12,272 3,544,495 3,556,767 3,415,788

-35-



THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

9 Staff
Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were:
2024 2023
£ £
Wages and salaries 5,827,573 5,390,215
Social security costs 603,504 572,081
Pension costs 1,374,403 1,202,601
Staff costs - employees 7,805,480 7,164,877
Agency staff costs 153,010 175,815
7,958,490 7,340,392
Staff development and other staff costs 103,659 93,041
Total staff expenditure 8,062,149 7,433,433
Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the year was as follows:
2024 2023
Number Number
Teachers 77 81
Administration and support _ 71 70
Management 10 10
158 181

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employse benefits (excluding employer pension costs
national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2024

Number

£60,001 - £70,000 6
£70,001 - £80,000 5

£80,001 - £90,000
£110,001 - £120,000
£120,001 - £130,000

—

-

and employer

2023
Number

- N D

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the governors and the senior management team as
listecd on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their

services to the Trust was £1,078,514 (2023: £902,463).
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10

11

12

Governors' remuneration and expenses

One governor {2023: one governor) has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits frem an
smployment with the Trust. The headteacher and other staff governors only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of headteacher and staff members under their contracts of
emplayment, and not in respect of thair services as governors.

The value of governors remuneration and other benefits was as follows!

Ms E Tongue (accounting officer and Headteacher):
« Remuneration £120,813 {2023: £110,785)
« Employer's pension contributions £31,125 (2023: £26,145)

During the year, expense payments totalling £nil (2023: £nil) were reimbursed or paid directly to governors
(2023: no governors),

Other related party transactions involving the governors are set out within note 24,
Governors and officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Trust has purchased insurance to protect governors and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Trust business. The
insurance provides cover up to £1,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year ended 31 August 2024
was £20,988 (2023: £31,285). In addition, the Trust has cyber insurance at a premium cost of £4,384 (2023:
£4,384). The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.

Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold Computer Fixtures Motor Total
land and equipment fittings and vehicles
buildings ‘equipment
£ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2023 27,940,345 235,562 250,831 18,795 28,443,333
Additions - T47 454 206,498 89,553 - 1,043,505
At 31 August 2024 28,687,799 442,060 340,184 18,795 29,488,838
Depreciation
At 1 September 2023 6,163,902 51,980 154,367 18,795 6,389,044
Charge for the year 706,849 99,220 34,610 - 840,679
At 31 August 2024 6,870,751 151,200 188,977 18,796 7,229,723
Net book value
At 31 August 2024 21,817,048 290,860 151,207 - 22,259,115
At 31 August 2023 21,776,443 183,582 96,264 - 22,056,289
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13 Stock

Educational materials

14 Debtors

Trade debtors
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security

Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income (see note 16)

16 Deferred income

Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2023
Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2024

2024 2023

£ £
73,487 102,176
2024 2023

£ £

3,128 41,448
37,208 71,493
166,561 330,763
206,898 443,704
2024 2023

£ £
123,947 37.140
141,516 138,291
232,526 167,137
510,729 1,186,187
1,008,718 1,628,755
2024 2023

£ £
153,978 922,688
922,688 115,812
(922,688) (115.812)
153,978 922,688
153,978 922,688

At the balance sheet date, the Trust was holding funding received in advance for bursary income, business

rates relief income for periods up to March 2025, school trips and for other small grant balances.
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17

Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant {GAG)
Pupil premium

Teachers pay

Teachers pension

Other grants

Other DFE group grants
Other government grants
Teaching school

Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversion

DfE group capital grants
Capital expenditure fram GAG
Local authority funding

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2023 Income Expenditure transfers 2024

£ £ £ £ £
1,541,231 6,638,922 {6,445,131) (919,906) 815,116
- 125,706 {125,706) - -

- 118,561 {118,561) - -

- 164,125 (164,125) - -

- 2,324,324 (2,324,324} - -

8,373 - (4,543) - 1.830

- 549,358 (549,358) - -

138,041 67,256 (36,459) - 168,838
(4,543) 500 4,043 - -

- - 90,000 (90,000) -
1,881,102 9,988,752 (9.674,184) (1,009,906} 985,784
14,800,830 - (296,760) - 14,504,070
2,055,811 123,599 {113,728) - 2,065,612
526,525 - {138,361} 919,908 1,308,070
4,673,123 - (291,760) - 4,381,363
22,056,289 123,599 (840,679) 919,906 22,259,115
23,737,391 10,112,351 (10,514,843) (90,000} 23,244,899
1,358,636 717,126 (174,448) - 1,901,214
25,005,927 10,829,477 (10,689,291) (90,000) 25,148,113
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Funds {Continued)

The specific purposes.fo'r which the funds are to be applied are as follows;

The General Annual Grant (GAG) represents the core funding for the educational activities of the school that
has been provided to the Trust via the Education & Skills Funding Agency by the Department for Education.
The General Annual Grant Fund has been sst up because the GAG must be used for the nermal running
costs of the academies. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Trust was not subject to
a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2024,

The other DfE/ESFA fund includes the restricted pupil premium income received for the purposes of
suppeorting children who have been eligible for free school meals at any point in the last six years. Other
funding included within the other DFE/ESFA fund relates to teachers’ pay grants, teachers' pension grants and
other grants. The relevant expenditure incurred is recorded through this fund.

The teaching school fund represents grant funding received from the National College for Teaching and
Leadership (NCTL) for core activities and for School Direct trainees, in the Trust's role as a designated
National Teaching School. It also generatss its own income streams from the NQT programme and hosted
training courses, The retevant restricted expenditure is then also recorded through this fund.

The other restricted income fund represents all sundry sources of restricted income from various sources that
are individually immaterial in vaiue. The relevant restricted expenditure is then also recorded through this
fund.

The pension reserve represents the separately identifiable pension scheme deficit inherited from the local
authority upon conversion to academy trust status, and through which all the pension scheme movements are
recognised.

The inherited fixed assets fund has been set up to recognise the tangible assets gifted to the Trust upon
conversion which represent the school sites including the long leasehold land and buildings and all material
itemns of plant and machinery included therein. Depreciation charged on those inherited assets is allocated to
the fund.

DfE/ESFA capital grants are made up of the CIF fund and the devolved capital fund. The restricted ACMF fund
has been set up to manage the restricted capital money awarded to the Trust from the Academies Capital
Maintenance Fund to fund two specific refurbishment projects. The Devolved Capital fund represents the
restricted devolved capital income awarded to the Trust and the relevant restricted expenditure recorded
against this.

Unrestricted funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the Trust at the discretion of the govermors.

In the current year, £919,906 (2023: £219,433) was transferred from restricted General Annual Grant funds to
Capital expenditure from GAG funds to cover capital expenditure incurred during the year. In addition, £2,102
{2023: £175) was transferred from unrestricted general funds to DfE group capital grants to cover capital
expenditure incurred during the year.
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18

Funds {(Continued)

Funds prior year

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil premium

Teachers pension

Other grants

Other DfE group grants
Other government grants
Teaching school

Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversion

DfE group capital grants
Capital expenditure from GAG
Local authority funding

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are

represented by:
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Total net assets

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure transfers 2023

£ £ £ £ £
1,207,537 8,387,778 (7,834,651) (219,433) 1,541,231
- 124,402 (124,402 - -

- 83,156 (83,156) - -

- 282,563 (282,563) - -

- - 6,373 - 6,373

- 614,711 (614,711) - -

146,866 24,093 (32,918) - 138,041
{4,543) - - - (4,543)
82,000 - 2,000 {84,000} -
1,431,860 9,516,703 (8,964,028) {303,433} 1,681,102
15,097,590 - (298,760) - 14,800,830
1,845,192 298,808 (88,189) - 2,055,811
355,907 - {48,640} 219,258 526,525
4,964,883 - {291,760) - 4,673,123
22,263,572 298,808 {725,349) 219,258 22,056,289
23,695,432 9,815,511 (9,689,377) (84,175) 23,737,391
869,009 693,937 (204,585) 175, 1,358,536
24,564,441 10,509,448 (9,893,962} (84,000) 25,095,927
Unrestricted Restricted Resfricted Total

Funds General Fixed asset Funds

Funds Funds

£ £ £ £

- - 22,259,115 22,259,115

2,212,217 1,683,499 - 3,885,716
(311,003) (697,715) - (1,008,718}

1,801,214 985,784 22,259,115 25,146,113
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19

20

Analysis of net assets between funds (Continued)

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are

represented by:

Tangible fixed assets - - 22,056,289 22,056,289
Current assets 1,358,536 3,209,857 - 4,568,393
Current liabilities - (1,528,755) - {1,528,755)
Total net assets 1,358,536 1,681,102 22,056,289 25,095,927

Long-term commitments, including operating leases

Operating leases

At 31 August 2024, the total of the Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

[eases was:

Amounts due within one year

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Notes

Net income for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial

activities)

Adjusted for:

Capital grants from DfE and cther capital income
Interest receivable

Pension costs less contributions payable
Pension scheme finance income

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

(Decrease) in provisions

Movements in working capital:
Decrease in stocks

Decrease in debtors
{Decrease)/increase in creditors

Net cash provided by operating activities

2024 2023
£ £

- 575

2024 2023

£ £
140,186 615,486
(123,509)  (298,808)
(2,798) (732)
(31,000) 7,000
(59,000) (9,000)
840,679 725,524
- (8,000)

28,689 46,492
236,806 83,495
(520,037) 730,774
500,926 1,892,231
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22

23

Analysis of changes in net funds
1 September Cash flows 31 August

2023 2024
£ £ £
Cash 4,022,513 {407,182) 3,615,331

Members’ liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of
it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she
ceases to be a member.

Pension and similar obligations

The Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and
Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-
teaching staff, which is managed by London Borough of Richmond Upon Thames. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £166,820 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023: £139,513) and
are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pensions 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to
opt-cut of the TPS following enrclment,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a '‘pay as you go' basis - these contributions
along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. The Trust has accounted for its
contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Trust has set out below the
information available on the scheme.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TP3 in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2023 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to spacify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020 in
accordance with The Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2023 and the
Employer Contribution Rate was assessed using agreed assumptions in line with the Directions and was
accepted at the criginal assessed rate as there was no cost control mechanism breach.

The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 26 October 2023,
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Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

» Total scheme liabilities for service (the capital sum needed at 31 March 2020 to meet the stream of
future cash flows in respect of benefits earned) of £262 billion

* Value of notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the proceeds from the notionai
investments held at the valuation date) of £222 billion

» Notional past service deficit of £39.8 billion (2016 £22 billion)

= Discount rate is 1.7% in excess of CPI (2016 2.4% in excess of CPI) (this change has had the
greatest financial significance)

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates have been set at 28.6% of pensionable pay from
T April 2024 until 31 March 2027 (compared to 23.68% under the previous valuation including a 0.08%
administration levy).

The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £1,030,855 (2023: £875,274).

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 24.1% for
employers and 5.5% - 10.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the

Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published
on GOV.UK.

Total contributions made 2024 2023

£ £
Employer's contributions 341,000 420,000
Employees' contributions 87,000 9,000
Total contributions 438,000 510,000

Principal actuarial assumptions

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2022 updated to 31
August 2024 by a qualified independent actuary.

2024 2023

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.80 3.85
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.80 2.85
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.05 5.35
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The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2024 2023
Years Years
Retiring today
- Males 207 207
- Females 23.3 23.2
Retiring in 20 years
- Males 22,0 22.0
- Females 24.7 24.6
Sensitivity analysis
The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme 2024 2023
Fair value Fair value

£ £
Equities 4,482,000 3,738,000
Bonds 1,103,000 1,041,000
Cash 1,178,000 944,000
Property 890,000 900,000
Total fair value of assets 7,753,000 6,623,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £929,000 (2023: £(1,186,000)).
Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities 2024 2023

£ £
Current service cost 310,000 427,000
Net interest cost {568,000) (9,000)
Total amount recognised 251,000 418,000
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 2024

£

At 1 September 2023 5,617,000
Current service cost _ 310,000
Interest cost 297,000
Employee contributions ' 97,000
Actuarial loss/{gain) 215,000
Benefits paid {237,000)
At 31 August 2024 6,289,000
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Pension and similar obligations {Continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets

2024

£

At 1 September 2023 | 6,623,000
Interest income_ _ 356,000
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net defined pension liability) 573,000
Employer contributions 341,000
Employee contributions 87,000
Benefifs paid {237,000)
At 31 August 2024 7,753,000
2024

£

Present value of defined benefit obligations (6,299,000)
Fair value of plan assets 7,753,000
Net asset 1,454,000
Restriction to level of asset ceiling (1,454,000)

Net Iiabi'lity recognised in the balance sheet | -

The value of the callege’s share of net assets has been restricted due to the effect of the asset ceiling being
the maximum value of the present of the economic bensfits available in the form of the unconditional right to
reduced contributions from the plan. A corresponding charge has been made to other comprehensive iIncome
in the petiod.

The Trust is aware that the Court of Appeal has recently upheld the decision in the Virgin Media vs NTL
Pension Trustees Il Limited case. The decision puts into guestion the validity of any amendments made in
respect of the rules of a contracted-out pension scheme between 6 April 1997 and 5 April 2016. The judgment
means that some historic amendments affecting 5.2(2B) rights could be void if the necessary actuarial
confirmation under .37 of the Pension Schemes Act 1993 was not obtained. Until further investigations have
been completed by the UK Government's Actuary’s Department and/or any legislative action taken by the
government, the potential impact if any, on the valuation of scheme liabilities remains unknown.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Trust and the composition of the board of governors being drawn from [ocal public
and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which a member of the
board of governors may have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying ESFA of all
transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Trust's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

No related party transactions took place in the period of account other than certain governors' remuneration
and expenses already disclosed in note 10,

Key management personnel compensation disclosure is included in note 9.
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25 Agency arrangements

The Trust distributes 16-18 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting period
ending 31 August 2024, the Trust received £32,700 (2023: £86,478) and disbursed £20,067 (2023;
£86,478) from the fund. An amount of £61,510 (2023: £9,299) is included in other creditors relating to
undistributed funds that are repayable to ESFA.
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Conclusion

We have carried out an engagement in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 25 June 2024
and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency ('ESFA'} as included in the extant
Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts, fo obtain limited
assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by The Waldegrave Trust during the
period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.,

[n the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Basis for conclusion

The framework that has been applied is set out in the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts.

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the FRC's Ethical Standard and the
ethical pronouncements of the ICAEW. We also apply International Standard on Quality Management (UK) 1
Quality Management for Firms that Perform Audits or Reviews of Financial Statements, or Other Assurance and
Related Services Engagements and accordingly maintain comprehensive systems of continuing quality
management, We belleve the assurance evidence we have obtained is sufficient to provide a basis for our
conclusion,

Responsibilities of The Waldegrave Trust's accounting officer and trustees

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Waldegrave Trust's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 20 October 2011 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received are applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. The
accounting officer is also responsible for preparing the Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance. The
trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
the proper conduct and financial operation of The Waldegrave Trust and appoiniment of the accounting officer.

Reporting Accountant’s responsibilities for reporting on regularity

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of _
the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts.

The objective of a limited assurance engagsment is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity. A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
the procedures performed vary in nature and timing fram, and are less in extent than for a reasonable assurance
engagement; consequently a limited assurance engagement does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance “engagement.
Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all
material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August
2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to
the autherities which govern them.




INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO THE WALDEGRAVE TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED) '

Our work included identification and assessment of the design and operatianal effectiveness of the controls, paolicies
and procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the framework of authorities including the
specific requirements of the funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education, the Academies Financial
Handbook 2023 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency and high level financial control areas where
we identified a material risk of irregularity is likely to arise, It aiso included areas assessed as presenting a higher
risk of impropriety. We undertook detailed testing, on a sampls basis, based on the identified areas where a material
irregularity is likely to arise, or potential impropriety where such areas are in respect of confrols, policies and
procedures that apply to classes of transactions. Our work was undertaken with due regard to the 'Evidence to
support conclusion on regularlty’ guidance in the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountants of Academy Trusts.

This work was integrated with our audit on the financial staterments and evidence was also derived from the conduct
of that audit to the extent it supports the regularity conclusion.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to The Waldegrave Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter dated 25 June 2024, Qur work has been undertaken so that we might state to the The Waldegrave Trust and
fhe ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Waldegrave Trust and the ESFA, for our
work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.
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